ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 9, 2010
2:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Kevin Meyer

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Con Bunde
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 247
"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of Pharnmacy;
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO 248
"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of Marita
and Fam |y Therapy; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 117

"An Act requiring the Departnment of Revenue to set the mninmm
price for cigarettes for sale by wholesalers and retailers; and
prohibiting a wholesaler or retailer from selling at whol esale
or retail cigarettes at a |ower price than the price set by the
Depart ment of Revenue."

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 247
SHORT TI TLE: EXTENDI NG BOARD OF PHARMACY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

01/ 29/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 9, 2010



01/ 29/ 10 (S) L&C, FIN
02/ 09/ 10 (S) L&C AT 2: 00 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 248
SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND BD OF MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

01/ 29/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 29/ 10 (S) L&C, FIN

02/ 09/ 10 (S) L&C AT 2: 00 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 117

SHORT TI TLE: PRI CE OF Cl GARETTES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

02/ 20/ 09 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 20/ 09 (S) L&C, FIN
02/ 09/ 10 (S) L&C AT 2: 00 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

JI' M COLVER

Staff to Senator O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 247 for the sponsor.

PAT DAVI DSON, Audi tor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 247 and SB 248.

JENNI FER STRI CKLER, Operati ons Manager

Di vi sion of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing
Department of Commerce, Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent
( DCCED)

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 247 and SB 248.

TI M BENI NTENDI

Staff to Senator d son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 248 for the sponsor.

PATRICI A WHI TE, Chair
Board of Marriage and Fam |y Therapists

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 2- February 9, 2010



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 248.

ESTHER CHA

Aide to Senator McCQuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 117 for the sponsor.

CLI FF CRAEMER, Vi ce President

Sal es and Marketi ng

Nort hern Sal es Conpany

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Strongly supported the CS for SB 117.

JOHN MAKAY, Sr. Vice President
Nor t hwest Regi on

Cost co Whol esal e Cor poration
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 117.

ROGER HAMES, Presi dent

Hames Cor porati on

Sitka, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the CS for SB 117.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

2:03:56 PM

CHAI R JCE PASKVAN called the Senate Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 2:03 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Meyer, Davis and Paskvan.

SB 247- EXTENDI NG BOARD OF PHARVACY

2:05:54 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 247 to be up for consideration.

JIM COLVER, staff to Senator O son, sponsor of SB 247, said this
bill extends the Board of Pharmacy that w Il sunset on June 30,
2010. The fiscal note of $130,300 is to pay staff, board per
diem and transportation for three board neetings a year. The
Legislative Budget and Audit D vision recently conpleted an
audit of the board and concluded that the term nation date for
t he Board of Pharmacy should be extended until June 30, 2018. He
noted that the termnation date in SB 247 says June 30, 2015
and he said the sponsor wanted the commttee to anend that date
toalign it with the audit recommendati on of June 30, 2018.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 3- February 9, 2010



2:08: 17 PM

MR. COLVER said the audit also recommended that the departnent
should inprove admnistrative support (for various snall
accounting and staffing issues) and the departnment has responded
that it 1is dealing wth those issues. Additionally, it
recommended that the board and staff need to work with the
Ofice of the Governor to inprove recruitnent of qualified board
applicants to ensure a full board.

He said SB 247 is supported by the Alaska Pharnmacists
Associ ati on.

2:08:49 PM
SENATOR THOMAS j oi ned the comm ttee.

2:09: 37 PM

PAT DAVI DSON, Division of Legislative Audit, Legislative Affairs
Agency, Alaska State Legislature, said she conducted an audit of
the Board of Pharmacy and recomended extending it to June 30
2018, an eight-year extension as provided by law. The audit also
found that admnistrative support by the departnment was
insufficient for the board to get its work done; so this needs
sone correction. She remarked that her audits have found this
issue as well as others exist with nost of the other boards.

Anot her issue, M. Davidson said, is that the Ofice of the
Governor did not make tinmely appointnents to the boards. These
boards are voluntary and take peoples' tinme, and if a board
doesn't have a full slate of nenbers, that nmakes the other
menbers work harder, which, in turn, decreases their wllingness
to be reappointed and nmakes it harder to get new nenbers.

2:11:17 PM

The last was a technical issue, she said, that had to do wth
col | aborative protocols. She explained that typically one
doesn't go to a pharnmacist to get an injection, but in certain
circunstances a pharmacist in association with a physician wll
go through a collaborative protocol that allows the pharmaci st
to dispense a flu shot, for instance. She explained that
regulations require that an witten agreenent between the
physi cian and the pharmacist and it has to be subnmitted to the
board. She found that those protocols were for one length of
time - one year, but the board allowed that protocol to exist
for two years. She recommended that the board limt itself to
approving those protocols for a tine limted to what is reached
bet ween the pharnmaci st and t he physi ci an.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 4- February 9, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN said he understands that the two requirenents are
that the doctors review the decisions nade by the pharnmacists at
| east once every three nonths and that the doctors would get the
patient records. He asked if those protocols were the ones
addressed in the audit.

M5. DAVI DSON answered yes. Regulations identify those things,
but the board wasn't necessarily followng all those regul ations
i n approving the protocols.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if sonme of the agreenments were witten for
periods of tinme longer than the doctor had conmitted to and if
that would result in the pharmacist dispensing flu shots beyond
the period of time the doctor had agreed to.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that she didn't see any evidence of the
protocols actually being enforced beyond the witten agreenent
bet ween the pharnaci st and the physician. However, in review ng
t hose protocols the board should make sure that everything that
is required by regulation be witten into the protocols and that
the board Iimts itself to adopting it for the tinmeframe that is
in the witten agreenent.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked her to nore fully explain the cooperative
practice agreenents.

M5. DAVI DSON responded that those agreenents were required so
that the physician could review the decisions nade by the
pharmaci st at |east once every three nonths and so patient
records could be provided to the physician. She found those were
not always specifically spelled out in the witten agreenent. In
regard to the timefrane, either the practitioner or the
pharmaci st could be confused as to how long they would be
all owed; so to avoid those sorts of confusion, it is inportant
that the board go through the witten cooperative agreenent
process. And then limt their approval of that for the tine
frame indicated in the witten agreenent.

2:15:58 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if a tenplate is followed for the protocols,
whether it's for flu shots or sonething else, that is board
approved and that regulations could be conpared to.

M5. DAVIDSON replied there is no tenplate established for those.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- February 9, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN asked if there is any reason they couldn't have a
tenplate to mnmeke it weasier to conpare protocols wth the
regul ati ons.

V5. DAVI DSON said because the witten agreenents could cover a
wde range of what the practitioners and pharmacists are
confortable in delegating, she didn't know if <creating a
tenplate would necessarily be beneficial. Practitioners would
probably change things to fit their individual circunstances.

2:18:13 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN found no questions on reconmendation 1

SENATOR MEYER commented that he had already heard SB 247 in the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Commrittee and he was very famliar
withit.

CHAI R PASKVAN said recommendation 2 identified deficiencies and
the first one was errors in license statistics; he asked her to
nmore fully explain that

M5. DAVI DSON responded that an annual report is prepared for
each of the boards to give an idea of its activities. It
identifies how many new |icenses were issued, how nmany renewal s
there were; sone boards that have l|icense by credentials versus
exam nation will break those out. They will also talk about non
licensing statistics |like investigations and actions taken as a
result of investigations, for instance. She said that she would
talk about this recommendation a |ot because she has found
different types of licensing statistics errors in different
boards. This is one of the things she saw when verifying
statistics that were included in annual reports.

CHAIR PASKVAN said a paragraph on page 8 addressed a key
adm nistrative staff nenber that was both wunqualified and
untrai ned. He asked how a key person could get that position.

V5. DAVI DSON deferred that answer to the departnent.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if this board had nore turnover than others.
V5. DAVIDSON replied that her experience with boards in genera
is that they have a higher turnover rate because they are

relatively entry level positions and better opportunities are
avai |l abl e el sewhere.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 6- February 9, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN said | anguage on page 8 says "may provide policy
makers with msleading information®™ and he wanted to know what
types of information that woul d be.

M5. DAVI DSON expl ained that goes back to the annual reports;
vari ous boards have issues cone up that may rise to a very high
| evel or nmay be dealt with at a board level. As an exanple, if
insufficient pharmacists were a concern, and if their statistics
were understated by 100 or 200 percent, a situation would be
created where soneone who is relying on that information would
come to a bad conclusion. O if sonmeone was using the annual
reports to nonitor nunbers of physician assistants or EMIs for

the Medical Boar d, for i nst ance, or to correlate the
rel ati onship between the nunber of |icensees and what the
university is doing, when you have bad statistics, you will get
bad policy information. Wat she was trying to express is that
these data get published and people will wuse it. She asserted
al so, "It cones froma state agency; it should be good data."

CHAIR PASKVAN asked if msleading information extends to
budgeting issues and if turnover of key admnistrative staff
menbers was one of her concerns.

2:24:23 PM
M5. DAVIDSON replied that she didn't look at staffing in
parti cul ar; boards and conmissions are financially self

supporting. Their conclusion with regards to the Board of
Pharmacy is that it has no financial deficits, because the
| i censees thensel ves pay for those things.

2:25:18 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the fee that is being assessed isn't high
enough, would that indirectly affect being able to hire enough
peopl e to do the work.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that she hadn't |ooked at staffing enough
to nake any reconmendations about it and namybe the departnent
woul d want to address it.

2:25:48 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN found no questions on recomrendation 2 on page 8
and went to the l|ast recomendation on page 9 and said the
nunber of vacancies that are identified goes to the core issue
of consunmer protection and asked if she could add anyt hi ng.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that it goes back to maintaining good
menbership on the boards so that work can get done. You don't

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 9, 2010



want the occupational boards to be so focused on what is good
for the occupation. If the state is going to be involved in
regul ati ng an occupation, there has to be a good public need for
it and that is where the public nmenbers, particularly, bring a
val uabl e perspective. So when it's a public nmenber vacancy, not
only does everybody else have a bigger work load, but a
different point of viewis mssing fromdeliberations.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if she has conme across an "unwillingness or
uneasi ness” with either the public or professional nenbers of a
board about sitting on it because  of APCC reporting
requirenents.

M5. DAVIDSON answered that the nenbers of the board that she
talks to are already appointed and they would already be over
that hurdle. But that mght cone up from people who decided not
to apply to serve on a board. That m ght be a good question for
the Governor's Ofice in terns of what sort of barriers they are
having in getting board nmenbers.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if she has cone across instances where there
just wasn't an applicant for a board position or where a
qgual i fied applicant was just not being appointed.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that the audit just |ooked at how many
vacanci es there were.

2:29:27 PM

SENATOR MEYER renarked that one nenber resigned because of a
direct financial interest in the health care industry. How big
of an issue is that? He said you would want people who have
knowl edge of the pharnmaceutical industry on the board. He then
asked how they determ ne whether or not a conflict of interest
is too great; is it a subjective call?

V5. DAVI DSON answered that the generic |aw for public nmenbers is
that they can't have a financial interest in that occupation.
However, this board in particular has a requirenent in statute
that the public nenber cannot have direct financial interest in
the health care industry.

SENATOR MEYER asked how direct financial interest is defined. Is
owni ng stock in a hospital a health care interest?

MS. DAVI DSON answered that she didn't know the specific details

on this one. However, what happened to this public nenber is he
passed through when he was appointed, but then he changed jobs

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 8- February 9, 2010



once he was a board nenber and that created a conflict with the
statute. She explained that during the audit they ask public
menbers to certify that they neet the requirenents and this
nmenber was unwilling to do that.

2:31:45 PM

JENNI FER STRI CKLER, Qper ati ons Manager , Di vi si on of
Cor porations, Business and Professional Licensing, Departnent of
Commerce, Comunity and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), said they
woul d probably hear recommendation 2 repeated for every sunset
audit report. She said unfortunately the division went through a
couple of "rough years" with an admnistrative officer who was
not "very accounting savvy" and he didn't educate hinself. Since
he noved on, soneone with an accounting background was hired

M st akes were corrected to such a degree that sone of the boards
are now pleased with the budget reports they are getting.

MS. STRI CKLER expl ai ned that the Board of Pharnacy, for exanple,
gets direct support from the licensing unit, but an
adm nistrative unit handles all of the budgetary and accounting
i nformation. The enforcenent unit does enforcenent. The problens

they ran into were in the admnistrative wunit in the
Prof essional Licensing area. She recalled that M. Davidson
mentioned the entry level |icensing examners are range 13 and

while they had tried to get them reclassed higher, they hadn't
been successful. That is not where the issues |lie, however; she
said it was wth the group that provides the |icensing
statistics to the admnistrative group. The problem cane wth
the former admnistrative officer she had just nentioned who
didn't educate hinself about their accounting system For
several years, although the witing on the wall, this person was
her peer and he was allowed to stay. She said it is a shanme that
this problem had to get such a level before he noved on. The
report said that "known procedures were in place" and they were,
but they had been "thrown out"™ by this individual, which nmade
the problem worse. She has taken great strides to recreate the
procedures and to correct a | ot of the m stakes.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if sonme of the high turnover was a product
of the unqualified and untrained person.

M5. STRI CKLER answered yes; she said there was great turnover in
the admnistrative and licensing staff; but turnover in the
licensing areas of all of the progranms is because of the pay
| evel of that job class.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 9- February 9, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the fees being charged the professionals
are sufficient for nenbers of the board to operate in a
responsi bl e manner.

M5. STRI CKLER answered yes; in fact, the fees will be | owered by
$100 across all categories that pay nore than $200.

2:36:45 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN asked how the fee can be |owered and services can
still be adequately provided - focusing on the consuner

protection aspect.

M5. STRICKLER replied that because of posting errors in the cost
accounting system (direct and indirect costs of expenditures)
caused by the former enployee she went back and conpared that to
what is in the state's accounting system She found a big
di sparity; so everything was corrected and now matches the state
accounting system to date. Fortunately, this board had
accunul ated a surplus which allows the fee to be | owered now.

CHAI R PASKVAN found no questions regardi ng reconmendati on 2.

2:37:54 PM
SENATOR THOVAS asked if this area is in good shape now.

M5. STRICKLER replied "yes."

2:38:21 PM

CHAIR PASKVAN went to the issue of policy makers receiving
m sl eading information and he wanted to know if he was asking
the right question.

M5. STRICKLER responded that any information he sees from the
boards to date wll be accurate. The possible m sleading
information would be incorrect l|icensing statistics - not from
the licensing staff that had accurate information - but fromthe
financial person it was submitted to in the division that
prepares the annual reports.

2:39:48 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN found no further questions on SB 247 and concl uded
public testinmony for the day. So SB 247 was held for further
wor k.

SB 248- EXTEND BD OF MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPY

2:41:44 PM

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE -10- February 9, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 248 to be up for consideration.

2:41: 49 PM

TIM BENINTENDI, staff to Senator O son, sponsor of SB 248, said
the extension of the Board of Marriage and Famly Therapy shows
June 30, 2015 in the bill, but the recommendati on was for 2014.
He ordered up copies of the bill before doing the homework and
when he read the audit he found the recommendati on was for 2014.
The sponsor supports the audit and has asked them to anend SB
248 to reflect its reconmendati on.

He said the board is conposed of three therapists and two public
nmenbers; the cost of a license is currently at $775 and in FY09
had 84 |icensees. According to the audit that figure my be
declining. Also according to the audit, the board's deficit has
gone down fairly dramatically from $75,400 in FYO5 to $29,200 in
FY09. The deficit has existed for over 10 years.

MR. BENI NTENDI said the board needs to meke regul atory changes,
however preparations and processing for such are charged to it
and nmenbers want to elimnate its deficit before they nove to
make significant regulatory changes. He said the legislative
audit recognizes this and further observed that the board
support from the departnment could be nore substantial and that
the governor could be naking appointnents in a nore tinely
f ashi on.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked about the APCC issue if there is a concern
that either the applicant pool is extrenely small or that the
appoi nt ment s haven' t been conpleted from the available
appl i cants.

MR. BENI NTENDI answered that he didn't have any thoughts beyond
what has been stated in the audit. Frankly, he said, departnent
personnel may have nore current figures, but a decline in
nunbers seens to have been the trend for the |ast several years,
and it is a small pool of people fromwhich to draw fees.

2:44. 46 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN remarked that he has a draft committee substitute
(CS) that reflects the recomended-2014 sunset date that would
be brought up in the next neeting.

2:45: 11 PM

PAT DAVIDSON, Division of Legislative Audit, Al aska State
Legislature, said the audit recommended extending the Board of
Marital and Famly Therapy to June 30, 2014. She explained that

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- February 9, 2010



a four-year extension is half of what is allowed by statute, and
the reason for the four-year recommendation is because she found
the board is holding off on regulation projects because of the
estimated associated costs along with the fact that the board is
currently trying to work off its deficit.

She said that a main advantage to having professional boards is
they keep regulations up to date instead of the legislature or
an adm nistrative body having to do it. However, if the board is
hol ding off on doing the regulatory changes that are necessary
to keep that professional occupation to its professiona
standards, it isn't really aren't serving its |licensing purpose.
This is why the audit reconmended a limted extension. They al so
found the sanme admnistrative difficulties with the board - |ack
of tinmely appointnments by the governor for new board nenbers.

CHAIR PASKVAN said page 7, findings and recommendations,
references that chairs of both the boards objected to her
recomendati on of conbining theminto one single board. What was
the basis for the objection?

2:48: 06 PM

VB. DAVIDSON replied that the last tine nental heal th
prof essionals were |ooked at - the Boards of Social Wrkers,
Mari t al and Fam ly  Therapists, Pr of essi onal Counsel or s,

Psychol ogi sts, Psychol ogi cal Associates, and one other group -
they were all up for sunset in the sane year (by design). One of
the things she looked at is if they should be conbined and her
recommendation is that they could be conmbi ned. But when it cones
down to it, the boards are financially self supporting and so is
each occupation. So there was no overriding budgetary need for
t he conbi nation; and probably the best way to create failure is
to try to "stick people together who do not want to be there.”
Her office thought a conbined board would be | arger than any one
of the individual boards, but in total would be a little bit
smaller. Again, they had a real concern that if the boards
didn't want to join or there was nore than an initial reluctance
to it, they would end up with a couple of very dysfunctiona
boards. About four or five years ago the legislature decided to
individually Iicense the boards.

M5. DAVIDSON said the Board of Marital and Famly Therapists
t hought conmbining would be okay, but it was in financial
difficulty and continuing to be challenged; and it has pretty
high fees. The only other board that has a small group with high
fees is the Board of Direct Entry Mdw ves. Their group is
relatively small; the fees go up and down and they never hear

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 9, 2010



conplaints from the practitioners about getting rid of their
boar d.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if given the objection to joining together
would it be appropriate to do a two-year sunset to see how
successful their financial efforts are. O are they forever
separated and not going to try to achieve those efficiencies?

M5. DAVIDSON said the legislature could designate whatever
extension it wuld like. Since the statute requires each
occupation to be self sufficient, conbining the boards would
make any econom es of financial scale. Choosing to make a two-
year extension to drive the point home is up to the |egislature.

CHAI R PASKVAN found no further questions on recommendation 1 and
went on to recommendation 2, the issue of unqualified staff and
| ack of docunented procedures.

SENATOR THOVAS interrupted to say he had trouble understanding
how del ayi ng regul ati ons has an i npact on revenue.

M5. DAVIDSON answered that regulation projects involve the
Departnment of Law (DOL) and it bills the board for its services.
If they start to incur legal and regulation specialist costs,
then the costs would go up and then the fees have to go up. This
board is already seeing a decline in the nunber of people who
are seeking licensure. She rem nded themthat this is one of the
boards that has a title restriction. You cannot call yourself a
licensed marital and fam |y therapist unless you are |icensed by
the state, but it doesn't really prohibit one from offering
those services in a different nane. So, while practitioners find
value in licensing, by being able to bill insurance conpanies
for instance, it's a title restriction, not a practice
restriction. If the fees get to be too much to bear, people
coul d decide to just not be |icensed.

2:55: 01 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the state has a mninmum qualification
standard for sonmeone calling hinself a counselor or a therapist.

M5. DAVIDSON replied yes; there are Boards of Professional

Counsel or s, Soci al Work  Exam ners, and Psychol ogi st and
Psychol ogi cal Associ ates. Each of those boards are going to have
educational requirenents associated with them - possibly a

certain level of experience requirenents and clinical or non
clinical settings to neet licensure.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE -13- February 9, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN asked if that included the Board of WMarital and
Fam |y Ther apy.

V5. DAVI DSON replied "yes.™

2:56: 18 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN went on to recommendation 2 on the unqualified
staff and | ack of docunented procedures.

M5. DAVI DSON said those are the sane issues as with the previous
bill.

CHAI R PASKVAN went to recommendation 3.
M5. DAVIDSON said that is the same as the previous bill.

CHAIR PASKVAN found no further questions on any of the
recommendat i ons.

2:57: 00 PM

JENNI FER STRI CKLER, Qper ati ons Manager , Di vi si on of
Cor porations, Business and Professional Licensing, Departnent of
Commerce, Conmunity and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), reported
that the Board of Marital and Fam |y Therapy is about $2000 shy
of making up its deficit. The division's fee analysis is based
on a two-year period and as with the other board, they had gone
back and corrected its figures.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked her "gut feeling" about conbining this board
with other boards once their nonetary deficiency is brought up
to date.

M5. STRICKLER answered that her gut feeling is that the
potential would be there if they were all operating in the
positive, but she didn't necessarily see any huge benefits. For
exanple, the Board of Architects, Engineers, Surveyors, and
Landscape Architects has 11 or 12 nenbers. Central |icensing has
a law that says for whatever reason, they all pay the sane
anmount of fees. The sanme thing could happen here, but if the
Board of Marital and Fam |y Therapy currently has 84 |icensees
and if they are added to a larger group, like the Board of
Psychol ogi sts and Psychol ogi cal Associates, even if they all pay
the same fees, a majority of the revenue would be comng from
t he psychol ogy area. The boards m ght not consider that "equal ."

2:59:56 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -14- February 9, 2010



PATRICIA WHITE, Chair, Board of Marriage and Fanily Therapists,
i ntroduced hersel f.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked her thoughts regarding the audit's findings
and recommendati ons and sunset extension.

M5. WHITE said she wote a letter in response to the audit and
it said that the responsibility spread over three sections was
fair and not just all the board's fault. The deficit has been a
problem but it happened earlier on in the board s creation
around 1992. The board has nade changes in the way
investigations are carried out before passing them on to the
DCOL, which elimnates the problem that happened many years ago.
The investigation centered on actions on the part of a |icensed
marriage and famly therapist who is no longer in the
profession. It was a good thing, but procedures have been
changes so that these kinds of costs won't happen to the board
agai n.

M5. WH TE stated that the audit said their min function is
protecting the public interest and that their inability to |ook
at changing regulations was challenging in that light. Wile
that is true in theory, after the audit cane out the board
decided to review all of its mnutes to see if it should have
gone ahead wth regulations but were thwarted because of
associated costs. She didn't think they would find that any
public interest had been chall enged, but they were going to make
sure.

3:03:18 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN asked if she found the APCC reporting requirenents
of board nenbers was wunduly limting the field of potential

appl i cants.

M5. WH TE answered that she didn't realize there was an APOCC
reporting requirenent.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked if anyone el se wanted to comment on the APCC

issue. Finding no further questions, he said SB 248 would be
hel d for further work.

SB 117- PRI CE OF Cl GARETTES

3:06: 01 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 117 to be up for consideration.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -15- February 9, 2010



ESTHER CHA, aide to Senator MQ@uire, sponsor of SB 117, said the
intent of SB 117 is to close a loophole in law, which allows
| arge high-volunme cigarette sellers to price their cigarettes at
| ess than the mninmum price set by law if it can be proved that
their cost of doing business is |lower than the nmandated m ni mum
price.

She expl ained that the original purpose of Article 7 in Title 43
was to prevent wholesalers and retails from using predatory
pricing practices to pronote the sale of cheap cigarettes and
use them as a | oss | eader. However, AS 43.50.800(c) specifically
states that a wholesaler or retailer that w shes to adverti se,
offer to sell, or sells cigarettes at less than the presunptive
actual cost to the wholesaler or retailer nust first obtain
approval from the Departnment of Revenue (DOR). The departnent
may grant approval only if the wholesaler or retailer provides
proof satisfactory to the departnent that the wholesaler's or
retailer's actual cost is |ower than presuned. Because of this
one clause, the statute didn't work the way it was supposed to.

For exanple, she said if the departnent determ nes that a pack
of cigarettes' mnimm cost is $7 and soneone cones in and says
they can show their cost of doing business allows themto price
cigarettes at $6.50; so they apply to the DOR that determ nes
whether that is true and allows themto sell cigarettes at that
price.

She said that SB 117 would repeal AS 43.50.800 and replace it
with section 6 in the bill which establishes AS 43.50.810. A
commttee substitute (CS), version E, changes the multipliers.
In SB 117 (a) the current percentages are as described in AS
43.50.800(a)(b), but the change in percentage points reflects
the conprom se anong sone of the smaller retailers as well as
the larger whol esalers. They have discussed this with the DOR
and found that the difference is the nmultipliers.

M5. CHA said that supporting docunments indicate how increased
prices work to help deter people from snoking, especially youth.
The studies are accurate, she said, however the price changes
that nmay be in effect with this bill nmay not be as exaggerated
as needed to prevent a very large decrease in consunption. By
getting rid of the wholesaler's or retailer's ability to apply
for an exenption, SB 117 would also bring parity and bal ance to
conpetition. It would level the playing field by insuring that

all vendors regardless of size and volunme or accounting
practices will have to price at or above the mninum price set
by | aw.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 16- February 9, 2010



3:10: 08 PM

SENATOR MEYER asked how nuch the price would go up per pack and
if it was set per pack or per carton. He also wanted to know how
they came up with the nmultiplier

M5. CHA deferred those answers to Johanna Bales wth the
depart nment.

SENATOR MEYER assuned this applied to just cigarettes and not
small cigars. Ms. Cha indicated that was correct.

3:11: 25 PM

CLIFF CRAEMER, Vice President, Sales and Marketing, Northern
Sal es Conpany, said they are a diverse, full-service distributor
that does commodities |ike bread, candy, snacks, beverages and
tobacco. He strongly supported the CS for SB 117. He believed
that the proposed changes wll sinplify current |aw, reduce
adm ni strative burden for both the state and |icensee, and all ow
a level playing field for both the wholesalers and the
retailers. They support the recomendation of renoving the
exenption and the proposed changes in the multiplier. This is a
conprom se between all the parties involved.

3:13:42 PM

JOHN MAKAY, Sr. Vice President, Northwest Region, Costco
Whol esal e Corporation, said Costco doesn't view the existing |aw
as having a |oophole. They always sell products above cost. He
expl ained that the provision was inserted in the past to allow
Costco to not have to artificially overcharge due to
"essentially a price fixing nechanism"™ It turned out, however,
that that provision was very burdensonme for both Costco and the
DOR. He supported this change, but said it would increase the
price slightly.

3:15:41 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN asked if Costco factors |labor into their cost.

MR. MAKAY answered yes; they factor in every cost. Costco and
the DOR spent a lot of time figuring out how to deterni ne cost -
for exanple, how nuch of his salary or their overhead shoul d get
applied to one little departnment in two buildings in a conpany
that has 550 | ocations. He said it is very subjective and he
appreci ated the departnent working with themtrying to determ ne
that, but it was an unw el dy process. Tobacco suppliers did not
all ow deductions that Costco sonetinmes gets for its other
products; so the profit they made on tobacco, even with the

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -17- February 9, 2010



exi sting assunptions, was higher in Alaska than probably
anywhere in the country.

SENATOR MEYER asked if all the states he covers have ni ninum
pricing for cigarettes.

MR. MAKAY answered that none of them do; Alaska is the only one.

3:18: 33 PM
SENATOR MEYER said he read that 23 other states do have this, so
it's not uncommon. Alaska is just the only one in his district.

MR. MAKAY said when this was instituted a nunber of years ago, a
fair anmpount of analysis was done on the states.

SENATOR MEYER asked if tobacco can be used as a loss |eader in
states that don't have m ni mum pri ci ng.

MR. MAKAY replied that he thought so, but Costco has an internal
policy of not selling things below cost. He said he wasn't an
expert in that area.

3:19:21 PM
SENATOR MEYER said he noticed the fornmula had a trade di scount,
and asked what that is.

MR. MAKAY replied that a |lot of discounts have been elimnated
by the tobacco conpanies, except for volume discounts and nmaybe
paynent terns.

3:20:16 PM

ROGER HANMES, Pr esi dent, Hanes Corporation, Sitka, Al aska,
supported SB 117 and the CS for all the reasons already stated.
He added that he understands that prices would go up
fractionally at the nost.

3:21: 48 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN held SB 117 for further work and adjourned the
nmeeting at 3:22 p.m

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 18- February 9, 2010



